ATIONS CERD

Di str.
GENERAL

International Convention on
the Elimination

CERD/ C/ SR. 1202
of all Forms of 20 March 1997
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fiftieth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1202nd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 13 March 1997, at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Fourteenth periodic report of |celand

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (conti nued)

Draft general recommendation concerning indi genous peopl es

Proposal for anendnent of rules of procedure

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97- 15902 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1202
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Fourteenth periodic report of |celand (CERD/ C/ 299/ Add. 4)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Geirsson and M. QO afsson
(Iceland) took seats at the Conmittee table.

2. M. CEIRSSON (Iceland) said that his Government was grateful for the
opportunity to report to the Cormittee on sonme recent measures taken in
Iceland to ensure inplenentation of the Convention

3. He first drew attention to a nunber of amendnents to the Constitution
adopted in the sumer of 1995, which were briefly described in the fourteenth
report. They largely reflected the provisions of international human rights
instruments to which Iceland was a party, including the Convention. They
concerned, in particular, the principle of equality, previously regarded as an
unwitten constitutional principle but now enshrined in section 65 of the
Constitution. The new provision stated that everyone was equal before the
law, without regard to sex, religion, opinion, national origin, race, colour
financi al status or parentage.

4, I n Decenber 1996, the Althing had adopted a nunber of changes to the
Penal Code ained at better protection against discrimnation on grounds of
colour, race, national origin or religion (Act No. 135/1996). Pursuant to the
new section 180 of the Penal Code, denying an individual goods or services on
the grounds of nationality, colour, race or religion had become puni shabl e by
up to six nmonths' inprisonnment. The sanme applied where a person was denied
access, for the aforementioned reasons, to any place intended for public use,
such as restaurants, hotels, transport or theatres.

5. Section 233 (a) of the Penal Code had been amended at the sanme tinme as
section 180 had been added. Previously, it had stipulated that any person
who, through nockery, slander, insult, threat or other nmeans, publicly
attacked a group of persons on the grounds of their nationality, colour, race
or religion would be liable to up to two years' inprisonment. Section 233 (a)
as anended applied not only to situations in which a group of persons was
attacked but al so where one person was attacked for simlar reasons. The new
wor di ng provi ded better individual protection against discrimnation

6. A nunber of changes had al so been made to Icelandic |egislation
concerning personal nanmes. In the spring of 1996, a new Personal Nanes Act
had been adopted by the Althing (Act No. 45/1996). The Personal Nanes Act
previously in effect had been the target of criticism in particular the
obligation that naturalized foreigners should assunme an |cel andic nane, to be
used jointly with their original name. Thus, the children of a naturalized
forei gner who reached the age of 15 years had been required to use the

I cel andi ¢ personal nane. Under the new |l egislation, that obligation had been
abol i shed; both naturalized persons and their children could retain their

fam |y nanes.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1202
page 3

7. Public interest in the subject of human rights had increased
significantly in Iceland in recent years, one manifestation being the
anmendnent to the human rights provisions of the Constitution. The concl usions
of the Committee followi ng the discussion of Iceland' s thirteenth periodic
report had been the subject of considerable debate in Iceland in 1994.

Vari ous neasures had been taken by the Governnment to inplenent the provisions
of the Convention, both within the |egal profession and in other areas. He
drew attention to the general observations in the fourteenth report concerning
t he publication and distribution of the Convention in Iceland during the past
two years. In closing, he pointed out that Iceland was anmong the States
parti es which had nmade the decl aration under article 14 of the Convention.

8. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ (Country Rapporteur), thanking the representative
of lceland for his presentation, said it should be enphasized that Icel and was
an open and denocratic society in which the exercise of human rights and
fundamental freedons enjoyed extensive guarantees. |Iceland had submitted its
report punctually.

9. Begi nning with a nunmber of general points, he took note of the
constitutional reforns discussed in paragraphs 5-7 of the report, to which the
representative of Iceland had referred. A new chapter with high | ega

standi ng had been added to the Constitution and strengthened the equality of
all persons before the |l aw, regardl ess of national origin, race or ethnic
origin. Owher rights set out in paragraph 5 related to those addressed in
article 5 of the Convention. It would have been desirable, however, for the
Constitution to explicitly prohibit all forms of racial discrimnation

10. Par agraph 8 of the report stated that the European Convention on Human
Ri ghts had been incorporated into Icelandic |aw and that its provisions could
be directly invoked in court as donestic |legislation. That was an inportant
step forward, which unfortunately had not been taken with regard to other

i nternational human rights instruments. He therefore reiterated the
recommendati on contained in paragraph 407 of the Committee's concl udi ng
observations (A/49/18) on Iceland s previous report that Iceland should

i ncorporate the International Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forms of
Raci al Discrimnation in national |aw.

11. He was pleased to learn that a bill had been passed abolishing the
requi renent that naturalized foreigners should take an Icel andic nane. He
conmended t he Covernnent for the establishment of a nunber of governnenta
bodies of interest to the Commttee: the Refugee Council (para. 15); the
Informati on and Cultural Centre for Foreigners (para. 19); the Human Ri ghts
Ofice (para. 25); and the Icelandic Save the Children Organization

(para. 28). The Committee |ooked forward to | earning about the results of
those initiatives.

12. In connection with article 2 of the Convention, he observed that |celand
had no specific policy to conbat racial discrinmination. Notw thstanding

I cel and' s honpbgeneous popul ation and the small nunmber of foreigners there, the
Government woul d need to develop legislation in the field of racia

di scrimnation, not only because of the presence of foreigners but also
because i mmigration flows were certain to continue in the future.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1202
page 4

13. Wth regard to paragraph 40, he noted that the teaching of Icelandic was
encouraged but no steps had been taken to ensure that immigrants and their
famlies could maintain their culture and |anguage. |In that context, he was
pl eased to | earn about the Mnistry of Education's experinment of teaching a
group of Vietnanmese children in their nother tongue and hoped that that
measure coul d be extended to other ethnic groups.

14. Turning to article 4, he observed that, according to paragraph 50,
rel evant Icelandic |egislation had not been anmended since the thirteenth
report. In his view, section 233 (a) and section 125 of the Penal Code were

too general to be construed as directly covering the concerns addressed in
article 4. Likew se, section 233 (a) did not appear to provi de an adequate

| egal basis for instituting proceedings for the tenporary suspension of an
association or political party which pronoted or encouraged racial hatred
(para. 52). He was therefore forced to conclude that Iceland still did not
fully conply with the provisions of article 4 (a) and (b). He therefore urged
the authorities to adopt further neasures in that regard. He welcomed the
announcenent by the representative of Iceland that an anendnent to the Pena
Code nmde it an offence to deny an individual goods or services or access to
any place intended for public use on the grounds of nationality, colour, race
or religion.

15. On article 5, he sought further information on the inplementation of the
| egislation referred to in paragraph 54 in order to be able to assess whet her
the rights enunerated in that provision were enjoyed by all. Paragraph 55

acknow edged criticismof the fact that a child did not acquire Icelandic
citizenship at birth if its nother was an unmarried foreign national, and
par agraph 56 reported that a rule was currently under consideration which
expressly provided for the possibility of granting Icelandic nationality to
children born stateless in Iceland. He expressed the hope that that draft

| egi sl ati on woul d be approved, thereby remedyi ng an enornous injustice.

16. Wth regard to article 6, paragraphs 58-61 stated that the victins of
raci al discrimnation could turn to the courts or the onmbudsman, but the

| egislation cited did not show whether they could seek just and adequate
reparation or satisfaction for damage. Legislation would therefore need to be
enacted in that respect. He noted that there had been no civil or crimna
cases concerning racial discrinmination in recent years, but recomended that
the authorities should neverthel ess remai n wat chful

17. Concerning article 7, he commended |celand for the publicity which it
had given to the Convention and for the wide variety of measures it had taken
to pronote awareness of human rights (paras. 62-69). He was al so pl eased that
the Comrmittee's conclusions on Iceland' s previous report had stinmulated public
debate in Iceland. Had the Committee's work encountered support or, on the
contrary, criticisnf

18. In closing, he noted with pleasure that |celand had nade the decl aration
under article 14 of the Convention



CERD/ C/ SR. 1202
page 5

19. M. SHERIFI S acknow edged Iceland' s effort to conply with the
Committee's recomrendati ons, but noted that there was still room for

i nprovenent in neeting the requirenents of the Convention, and particularly
article 4.

20. Concerni ng paragraph 23, he was pleased to learn that the Committee's
concl udi ng observations on the previous report had provided an opportunity for
public debate and had been commented upon in all the nost influentia
Icelandic nedia. It was al so encouraging that, for the first tine, the
Convention had been included in the Law Coll ection, which contained the
Constitution and other fundanental statutes (para. 21 of the report). The
growing interest in human rights in Iceland over the past few years was an

i nportant devel opnent (para. 24).

21. He noted that two organi zati ons had been established to dea
specifically with human rights: the Human Rights O fice (para. 25) and the
University Institution of Human Rights (para. 27). According to paragraph 29,
there was no fornmal cooperation between them and the Government; he wondered,
however, whether they had worked together with the Governnent in drafting the
report to the Cormittee and what government body was responsible for
coordinating that effort.

22. Iceland, to its credit, had been one of the first States to nmake the
decl aration under article 14. According to paragraph 61, in recent years no
civil or crimnal cases had been brought before the courts concerning racia

di scrimnation, and the Onbudsman of the Althing had not received any

conpl aint fromindividuals claimng that they had been discrim nated agai nst
by the authorities on grounds of race, colour or national or ethnic origin

He woul d like to know whether citizens of Iceland were aware of the existence
of the possibility of |odging individual conplaints on the basis of article 14
of the Convention

23. Turning to paragraph 68, he wel coned the many projects for conbating
discrimnation in which Iceland participated. In closing, he asked the
Governnment of lceland to consider ratifying the General Assenbly's amendnent
to article 8, paragraph 6, of the Convention

24. M. de GOUTTES commended |cel and's adoption of a nunber of |egislative
measures ained at fulfilling its obligations under the Convention, and
particularly the anmendnent to the human rights provisions of the Constitution
and additions to the Penal Code. The declaration made under article 14 and
the wi de dissem nation of international human rights instrunents were further
positive steps.

25. Par agraph 8 gave rise to concern as it indicated that, apart fromthe
Eur opean Convention on Human Ri ghts, no other international instrunents,

i ncluding the International Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forms of
Raci al Di scrimnation, had been incorporated into donestic | aw and,
furthernmore, no decision had been taken to do so. He asked the delegation if
it could provide information on the prospects for incorporating the Convention
into donestic |aw



CERD/ C/ SR. 1202
page 6

26. It was al so regrettable that there was no formal cooperation between the
Governnment and the |celandic Human Rights O fice, the University Institution
of Human Rights and the Save the Children Organi zati on, beyond the

di ssem nation of information

27. Wth reference to the issue of nationality for children born out of
wedl ock to a non-Icel andi c nother, he asked whether the Governnent had
consi dered anending or repealing the |egal provisions which prevented such
children fromacquiring lIcelandic nationality.

28. M. DIACONU drew attention to the considerable anmobunt of | egislation
enacted by Iceland; it was in nmany respects nore conprehensive than that of
the other Nordic countries. |Iceland had adequate |egislation to conbat racia

discrimnation if it were to arise. He wi shed to renm nd the Governnment of
I cel and that the recomendati ons made in the Committee's concl uding
observations relating to article 4 should be strictly conplied wth.

29. I cel and had been innovative in creating the office of the Orbudsman for
Chi l dren, and he wondered whet her consideration would be given to extending
that initiative to designate onmbudsnen to deal with all human rights matters,
i ncluding racial discrimnation. He encouraged the CGovernnent to resolve the
i ssue of possible statel essness of children born to unwed foreign nothers and
referred to the international instruments on statel essness as sources where
sol utions could be sought.

30. M . FERRERO COSTA said he wished to underscore the |lack of direct
applicability of the Convention to Icelandic legislation. As stated in

par agraph 8 of the report and paragraphs 54 and 55 of the core docunent
(HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 26), Ilceland's dualistic position regarding provisions of
human rights conventions had been di scussed on the previous occasi on when

I cel and had appeared before the Cormittee, but the matter continued to be of
concern. He asked why an exception was made in the case of the European
Convention on Human Rights and not in the case of other conventions. He was
al so interested in knowi ng about specific rulings of the Suprenme Court which
had gi ven added weight to international instruments and to what extent human
rights and racial discrinnation had been considered.

31. While there had been | egislative amendnents to provisions relating to
article 4, the requirenents of paragraph (b) of that article had not been
fulfilled. He inquired about political parties in Iceland and whether there
could be parties which pronoted ideol ogies of racial superiority. How was the
prohi bition of such parties enforced?

32. He asked the del egation to furnish additional information on the status
of the Personal Nanes Bill and the bill on denial of access to public places
on racial or simlar grounds, which were due to be considered by the Althing
in 1996.

33. M. GARVALQV, referring to paragraph 5 (a) of the report, pointed out
that the amendnent to the Constitution did not reflect the wording “descent,
or national or ethnic origin” contained in article 1, paragraph 1, of the
Conventi on.




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1202
page 7

34. He endorsed his coll eagues’ comrents on the incorporation of the
provi sions of the Convention into donestic |aw and expressed the hope that
Iceland would see fit to take the necessary steps to legislate in that regard.

35. Wil e he accepted that issues relating to racial discrimnation had not
gai ned nuch attention in public debate, since Icelandic society was relatively
honogeneous, article 2, paragraphs 1 (a) and 2, sought to protect individuals
as well as groups; States parties should not wait for |arge nunbers of
segregated mnorities to energe before instituting | egal provisions to ensure
protection against racial discrimnation

36. His attention had been drawn to the reference to “political groups and
trade unions” in a citation fromthe Constitution in paragraph 51, and
stressed that article 4 of the Convention did not specifically nmention that it
was political groups and trade unions that should be banned. He asked,
hypot heti cal |y, whether an organi zati on woul d be banned only after it had
expounded raci st ideas and ideologies or comritted racial acts and viol ence,
or before it had done any of those things.

37. He had the uneasy feeling that paragraph 62 of the report related only
indirectly to article 7 of the Convention and enphasi zed that teaching and
education should be extended to include |aw enforcenent officials, judges and
teachers, anobng others.

38. M. van BOVEN noted with satisfaction Iceland s declaration under
article 14, but regretted that only paragraph 409 of the Conmittee' s previous
suggesti ons and reconmendati ons had been inplenmented since 1994. The

remai ni ng three recomendati ons, namely paragraphs 407, 408 and 410, had not
been addressed. While States parties were under no obligation to foll ow up

t he concl udi ng observations, it would neverthel ess be useful for the Committee
to know the reasons for non-conpliance. He greatly welcomed the attention the
Governnment had paid to neasures to afford protection against racia

di scrimnation, but hoped that Iceland s next report would reflect follow up
on the concl udi ng observati ons.

39. Looki ng at the popul ati on breakdown in the tables in paragraph 33 of the
report, he noted that on average about 50 per cent of those born outside

I cel and had acquired Icelandic citizenship. Although he saw no evidence of
any discrimnatory patterns in granting citizenship, there were sone

i nteresting discrepancies between the high proportion of, say, Germans and the
bel ow average proportion of persons of Asian origin who had acquired
citizenship. He asked whether the del egati on had any expl anation for those

di screpanci es and whether |cel and recogni zed dual citizenship, which m ght
affect the figures. Anpbng the 10,901 persons born in other countries, how
many had been granted refugee status?

40. M. WOLFRUM considered the report of Iceland to be one of the best the
Conmittee had ever seen. lceland's record in prohibiting racial
discrimnation was difficult to match. The adoption of a bill abolishing the
obligation for a foreigner to assune an Icelandic name, in response to a
recommendati on by the Cormittee, was a wel cone devel opnent. He trusted that
details of the proposed new provision to be added to the Penal Code, referred
to in paragraph 14, would be given in Iceland' s next periodic report.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1202
page 8

Regardi ng the question of the incorporation of the Convention into domestic

| aw, an expl anati on was needed, but he would not criticize lIceland for
adopting a dualistic approach as long as the content of an internationa
agreement was inplenented. Either an international treaty was considered part
of donestic |law or, as appeared to be the approach adopted in the Scandi navi an
countries, all parts of donestic legislation were anended to bring theminto
conformity with international treaties ratified. Both systens had their
merits, the advantage in the latter system being that judges tended to refer
to, and inplenment, national rather than international |aw

41. Li ke M. van Boven, he woul d appreciate an expl anation of the

di screpancies in the tables in paragraph 33 concerning the acquisition of
citizenship. Wre they perhaps due to the earlier or nore recent inmmgration
of certain groups? Wth reference to paragraph 45, the fact that pupils from
Viet Nam were singled out as beneficiaries of an experiment in nother-tongue
instruction concurrently with teaching in Icelandic was no doubt due to the
particular difficulty of the Icelandic | anguage for persons from Asi a.

Simlar projects, involving a new approach to teaching foreign | anguages, were
being carried out in Germany and he woul d wel come nore information. Although
he agreed with M. Garval ov that the statenent in paragraph 51 was not fully
in conformty with article 4 (b) of the Convention, it mght well be, judging
froma reading of that paragraph in conjunction wi th paragraph 52, that the
effect would be the sanme if section 72, subsection 1 of the Constitution
together with section 233 (a) of the Penal Code, were interpreted as meani ng
that associations conmitting unlawful acts nust be di sbanded. Was that
interpretation correct? Finally, he was nost inpressed by the neasures
reported under article 7 which, though perhaps not strictly in accordance with
that article, net the sanme objective. |Iceland was one of the very few States
whi ch conplied with that provision

42. M. GEIRSSON (Ilceland), responding to nenbers' coments and questions,
referred themto his introductory statement in which he had indicated the
efforts being made to inprove the provisions of section 233 (a) of the Pena
Code concerning racist attacks. Menbers had rightly pointed to flaws in the
Nationality Act. The Mnistry of Justice was currently working on anendnments
to inprove the Act. Although the Human Rights O fice and the University
Institution of Human Rights were not directly involved in drafting Iceland' s
report to the Cormittee, which was prepared by the Mnistry of Justice, the
Gover nment mai nt ai ned excel l ent cooperative relations with those two bodi es.
The former body received financial assistance fromthe Government, and

the Chairman of the latter had in fact been the Government's representative
before the Committee sone years previously. He adnmitted with regret that
people in Iceland were not well acquainted with the recourse procedure for

i ndi vi dual conpl aints under article 14 of the Convention, but hoped that that
situation would change with the Governnent's vigorous efforts to nake the
Convention nore w dely known.

43. Wth regard to the incorporation of the Convention into donestic |aw,

I cel and adhered to the dualistic | egal doctrine to the effect that
international treaties did not assume the force of donestic |aw even if
ratified, but were only binding according to international |law. However, it
was a principle of legal construction that domestic | aw should be interpreted
in conformty with international |law Like other Scandinavian countries,



CERD/ C/ SR. 1202
page 9

I cel and changed its national |egislation when it was not in conformty with
the international treaties it ratified. Wy Iceland had incorporated the

Eur opean Convention on Human Rights into donestic |aw but not the

I nternational Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forns of Racia

Di scrimnation was a good question, to which he had no i medi ate reply, but
Iceland' s position was the sane as that of the other Nordic countries, with
the exception of Norway, which had incorporated two international conventions
into its donestic |aw.

44. It had been asked why there was only an Orbudsman for Children. There
was in fact another onbudsman, the Orbudsman of the Althing, who dealt with

ot her human rights issues; the current incunmbent was a | ong-standi ng nenber of
t he European Commi ssion of Human Rights. |In reply to questions about the
procedure for prohibiting associations with unlawful aims, he was glad to say
that such associations were very rare in Iceland, and i ndeed none had thus far
come to the authorities' attention. M. Wl frumhad been right to say,
however, that although Iceland s approach was different, the effect was the
same, since the Constitution provided that associations could be forned

Wi t hout prior authorization, but if they pursued unlawful ains they could be
di sbhanded - obviously by a court decision

45. Wth regard to the discrepancies noted in the tables in paragraph 33
concerning the acquisition of Icelandic citizenship, M. Wl frum had been
right to assune that they had nmuch to do with when the various groups had
arrived. There were rules on length of stay and other criteria for acquiring
citizenship. For exanple, the high proportion of Gernmans who had been
naturalized was due to the arrival of |arge nunbers of Germans in Icel and just
after the Second World War, Poles had cone nore recently to work in the

shi pyards, and the persons born in Indonesia were nostly children who had been
adopted. Further explanations would be given in the next report.

46. M. CGeirsson and M. d afsson (lceland) w thdrew.

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (agenda item 3) (continued)

Draft general reconmendation concerning indigenous peoples (CERD/ C/50/M sc.7).

47. M. WOFRUM recalled that the initial version of the draft genera
recommendati on now before the Comrittee (CERD/ C/ 50/ M sc.7) had been introduced
at the previous session but had been discussed only briefly. M. Diaconu had
submtted the followi ng amendnents: the figure “1” should be inserted between
the final preanbul ar paragraph and the first operative paragraph; in the first
sentence of the first operative paragraph, the words “in their territories”
shoul d be inserted between the words “indi genous popul ati on” and “to

acknow edge”; the figure “I1” should be inserted after the final operative

par agraph and be foll owed by a new paragraph readi ng:

“Requests States parties with indigenous peoples in their territories to
fully present in their periodic reports to the Conmttee the situation
of such peoples fromthe point of view of all the provisions of the
Convention.”



CERD/ C/ SR. 1202
page 10

48. He suggested that the text, as amended, should be circul ated at the
current session and that the Cormittee agree to consider it at its fifty-first
sessi on.

49. M. SHERIFIS said he wished to make a clarification for the record.
VWile the Cormittee was aware that its recommendati ons were not binding on
States parties, it hoped that they would take account of them and act
accordingly. Once a recommendati on was adopted by the Commttee, however, it
shoul d at | east be binding on all Committee nenbers. An occasion had arisen
on which, after he had asked the representative of a State party whether it
had complied with one of the Conmttee's general recomendati ons, another
menber had intervened to tell the representative that, since the
recommendati on was not binding, it did not mean nuch and need not be taken
into account. Such contradictory statements before a State representative
presented a poor inmage of the Comrittee and only led to confusion. Points of
the Conmittee's procedure or interpretation that were not specifically

rel evant to one State party should be discussed anong nenbers at a cl osed
meeting. |f such public discussion was |likely to arise again, he would be
reluctant to question a State party on its conpliance with a reconmendati on
He woul d appreciate the Cormittee's views on that issue.

50. The CHAI RMAN, speaking in his personal capacity, said that M. Sherifis
was correct in saying that nenbers were under an obligation to view a
recommendation in the terns he had suggested. He would not wish to specify
the nature of that obligation, but M. Sherifis had intimted that it was a
nmoral, collegial obligation to be seen in the perspective of the imge which
the Committee presented to States parties. He asked whether any menbers of
the Comrmittee objected to his adopting, as Chairman, the view he had just
expressed as an individual nenber.

51. M_. DI ACONU considered that the matter should be discussed in the
presence of all 18 nenbers of the Comrittee. He was not sure whether the
Chai rman was conpetent to issue a ruling on such a question and formal action
could only be taken if there was a text before the Conmittee that could be
duly di scussed.

52. M. GARVALOV agreed with the interpretation proposed by the Chairnan.
He woul d al so have a comment to nmake on the text of the draft Genera
Recomendat i on

53. M . FERRERO COSTA suggested that consideration of the question raised by
M. Sherifis should be deferred.

54. The CHAIRMAN invited nmenbers to submit any further comments on the text
to M. Wlfrum He took it that the Conmmittee agreed with M. Ferrero Costa's
suggestion and with M. Wl frunm s proposal to consider the anmended draft
CGeneral Recomendation at the fifty-first session

55. It was so deci ded.




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1202
page 11

Proposal for anmendnent of rules of procedure (CERD/ C/50/M sc.2) (continued)

56. M. CHI GOVERA said that the draft proposal, which he had anended
foll owi ng consultation with other nenbers of the Conmttee, would read:

“(a) In order to naintain the highest standards of inpartiality,
menbers should, as a general rule, refrain fromparticipating in
t he consideration of the reports of States of which they are
nati onal s.

“(b) Menbers may, however, feel free, if he or she so wishes, to
provi de advice to the nenbers of the Commttee with a viewto
i mproving the information on the factual and |egal situation of
the State concerned or other rel evant aspects.”

57. The amendment to the rules of procedure was vital to the i mge and
integrity of the Committee. The draft proposal was consistent with the terns
of article 8, paragraph 1, of the Convention, which referred to the
inmpartiality of menbers, and would hel p prevent any potential pressure being
brought to bear by the authorities of a reporting State on a national who was
a menber of the Conmmittee.

58. M. WOFRUM fully endorsed the amended draft proposal. In his opinion
the text should be inserted as new rule 68 (a) of the rules of procedure.

59. M . FERRERO COSTA, supported by M. YUTZIS, said that he had endorsed
the original text of the draft proposal. As anmended, it was not in keeping
with the traditional practice of the Cormittee and was likely to create the
very situation nenbers were trying to avoid. The text should state that
menbers coul d provide advice if they were invited to do so.

60. M. de GOUTTES agreed with M. Ferrero Costa, but the Commttee should
not be too hasty in adopting such an anendnent to its rules of procedure; it
must be cl ear how other comrittees intended to react to the rel evant
recommendation in the report of the 7th nmeeting of persons chairing human
rights treaty bodies (A/51/482).

61. M. DI ACONU said he was concerned about how t he adoption of such an
anmendnent woul d affect the working nethods of the Commttee in the event that
a menber who did not agree with it refused to conmply with its provisions.

62. It was not clear to whomit would fall to invite a menber to provide
advice, if the anendnent was adopted. As it stood, the text placed
responsibility on nmenbers thensel ves to deci de whether or not to take the
floor during the consideration of the report of the country of which they were
nati onal s, thus safeguardi ng nmenbers' freedom of speech, which was as it
should be. |If the text was adopted, it should be inserted after rule 40.

63. M. van BOVEN said that his w shes had been taken into account in the
drafting of the text. However, the scope of paragraph (b) should be limted:
“only” should be inserted before “with a viewto inproving the information”
and the paragraph should end after “State concerned”




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1202
page 12

64. Ms. SADIQ ALI said the text should stipulate that nmenbers would be
invited by the Chairman of the Committee.

65. M. AHMADU consi dered that the comments nade in the draft proposal were
directed at him He had only once sought to provide additional information
during consideration of his country's periodic report, at a tinme when
concl udi ng observations had been discussed in closed neetings, at which
menbers of the Committee should not be denied the right to provide additiona
informati on. That was particularly true when, as an expert, usually with a
weal t h of know edge of the situation in his or her country, the nenber m ght
know nore about a particular question than the persons presenting the report.
In no way had he been trying to prevent criticismof his country. As |long as
he was a nenber of the Committee he would refrain fromintervening during the
consideration of his country's reports. The traditional practice whereby a
menber of the Conmittee who was a national of a reporting State remined
outside the discussion of the report should continue but should not be
formalized in a witten provision. The text inplied that nenbers m ght not be
i mpartial, which was not fair.

66. M. GARVALOV said that he would prefer any reference to the
participation or non-participation of a nenber in the discussion of his or her
country's report to take the formof a CGeneral Recommendation rather than an
amendment to the rules of procedure. It was not clear what exactly would
constitute participation in the debate. The first paragraph should be revised
to make it clear that nenbers were generally expected to refrain from
participating, a wording which would convey the idea that a member retained
the right to do so if he or she so w shed.

67. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ said that the inplications the draft proposa
woul d have on the competence of nenbers of the Committee under the Convention

shoul d not be overlooked. It was not clear whether, if an invitation to
participate was included in the text, who or how many nenbers of the Conmittee
woul d invite their colleague to take part in the proceedings. It was equally

uncl ear whether the draft proposal related only to consideration of a State
party report or extended to consideration of comrunicati ons under article 14
of the Convention. The Conmittee should therefore consider the matter in
greater depth.

68. M. CH GOVERA said it was not true that the draft proposal was targeted
at any particular nenber of the Conmttee. The Committee drew up rul es of
procedure to help it ensure inplementation of the Convention. The draft
proposal was therefore consistent with the terns of the Convention and the
work of the Committee. It was also of great inportance in terns of
highlighting the integrity of the Commttee, particularly in the eyes of
States parties which did not have nationals on the Conmmttee. He would
continue to try and find a conprom se which nmet with the assent of all nenbers
of the Comittee.

69. The CHAI RMAN said that the Committee would continue consideration of the
guestion at a |l ater date.

The neeting rose at 6.05 p. m




